
TT he Ticino architect Giuseppe Pagani (1861-1940), born in Morbio Superiore, was 
a prominent figure active in the areas of Lugano, Varese and Maggiore lakes, affected by a 
strong increase in traffic and tourism following the opening of the Gotthard and Simplon 
railway tunnels, in 1882 and 1906 respectively.
Still under study, his works, made or designed between 1900 and 1915, include buildings 
with flats and shops, villas, hotels and a thermal & leisure complex, equipped with facilities 
for social life and body care.
His activity is well documented in Lugano, where he built or transformed buildings according 
to the fashion of the time, with an elegant Liberty style, expressed in large arches, sinuous 
cornices, refined chromatic games, friezes and wrought irons adorned with geometric, plant 
and floral motifs as well as hints to the medieval and Renaissance architecture (ashlars, cor-
nices, arches). A significant project was the Hotel International au Lac  (1905-1906), cha-
racterized by a rounded wall that joins the two facades and an oval-shaped dome – solutions 
that soften its forms. The dome was also used by the architect in Stresa, in the majestic Regi-
na Palace Hotel (1908) and in the building of the Kursaal (1909), a real game of light shapes.
In 1909 the architect Pagani worked again to an imposing hotel in Santa Margherita Ligure, 
commissioned by the Valsesian family Guglielmina, pioneer of the tourism industry and ow-
ner of two hotels on Mottarone (1884) and in Gignese.
For some of his works, Pagani was not only the designer but also acted as an entrepreneur: this 
is the case for the Regina Palace, the Rosmini Oratory and the Kursaal complex in Stresa and 
for the project of the Vanzone spa in the Anzasca Valley, which envisaged bringing the healing 
water of the valley to the foot of Mount Rosa in Stresa, connecting the mountain complex to the 
lake complex of the Kursaal. Pagani’s work in Vanzone is the Regina Hotel (1915).
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